
WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC MEETING - SEPTEMBER 2017

September 14-15, 2017
Red Lion on the River

 700 N. Division
Spokane, WA



COMMISSIONERS

EX OFFICIOS

STAFF

Bud Sizemore
Chair

Julia Patterson
Vice Chair

Kelsey Gray Ed Troyer Chris Stearns

Senator
Steve Conway

Senator
Lynda Wilson

Representative
David Sawyer

Representative
Brandon Vick

David Trujillo
Director

Amy Hunter
Deputy Director



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360)486-3440  (800)345-2529  FAX (360) 486-3625 

 
Red Lion on the River 

700 N. Division St. Spokane, WA 99202 
September 14 & 15, 2017 

 
12:45 - Fee Simplification Overview and Discussion - Public Welcome 

 
Please note, agenda times are estimates only.  Items may be taken out of sequence at the 

discretion of the Chair. 
Public Meeting – Thursday, September 14, 2017 

11:30 AM Call to Order Only                                                                                    Bud Sizemore, Chair  
 Executive Session  -  Closed to the Public 

Discuss Pending Investigations, Tribal Negotiations, and Litigation 
THE PUBLIC MEETING WILL RECONVENE AT APPROXIMATELY 1:30 PM 

Tab 1 
1:35 PM 

Welcome and Introductions                                                                     Bud Sizemore, Chair
 
Consent Agenda  (Action) 

 August 10, 2017 Minutes 
 New Licenses and Class III Employees 

Class III Employees/Snoqualmie (Action) 
 
Director’s Report                                                                                 David Trujillo, Director
 

Tab 2 
 

Presentation -  Criminal Case Update                            Gary Drumheller, Agent In Charge  
                                                                                          Danny Lisa, Acting Agent In Charge 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS 
RULES FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE FILING 

Tab 3 Fee Simplification Overview                                 Michael Kashmar, Chief Financial Officer 
 

Tab 4 Staff Request for Rule Changes/Fee Simplification (Package 1) 
                                                                                                      Amy Hunter, Deputy Director 
                                                                                                   Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

 Chapter 230-05 WAC Fees 
 Chapter 230-03 Permitting and Licensing rules 

 
 Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comments 

 
 Meeting Adjourn 

 
THE PUBLIC MEETING WILL RECONVENE SEPTEMBER 15TH, 2017 AT 9:00 AM

Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings. Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to 
rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator (360) 486-3447. 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

 

August Gambling Commission Meeting Recap 
South Puget Sound Community College Lacey Campus 

4220 6th Avenue SE 
Lacey, WA 98503 
August 10, 2017 

 
Commissioners Present:      
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 
Kelsey Gray, PhD. 
Chris Stearns  
Ed Troyer  
 
Ex Officios Present: 
Senator Steve Conway 
Senator Lynda Wilson 
 
Staff Present: 
David Trujillo, Director; Amy Hunter, Deputy Director; Tina Griffin, Assistant Director; 
Michael Kashmar, Chief Financial Officer; John Meader, Assistant Attorney General; Julie Lies, 
Tribal Liaison; Heather Songer, Public Information Officer; Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant. 
 
1st Executive Session 
Chair Sizemore called the August 10, 2017 Gambling Commission Meeting to order at 11:06 
a.m. He recessed the meeting to Executive Session at 11:07 pursuant to the RCW 42.30 and 
stated the Commissioners would discuss Tribal Negotiations, Pending Investigations and 
Litigation.  He announced the Commissioners would return at approximately 12 pm.  
 
At 12:00 pm an announcement was made by Julie Anderson that Executive Session would be 
extended by another 30 minutes, reconvening the Public Meeting at 12:30 pm.  

 
-Public Meeting-   

August 10, 2017                                                                                        
Chair Sizemore called the Gambling Commission to order at 12:36 pm. He welcomed everyone 
to the South Puget Sound Community College Lacey Campus and introductions were made.  
 
There were about 25 people in attendance.  
 
Recognition for 25 Years of State Service – Director Trujillo 
Chair Sizemore recognized Director Trujillo for his 25 years of service and awarded him the 
Washington State pin and Gambling Commission certificate. 
 



2 
 

Director’s Update: 
Director Trujillo acknowledged a few individuals in the audience; Bill Goforth, Executive 
Director, from the Nisqually Gaming Agency, Dick Kellogg, Executive Director,  from the 
Cowlitz Tribal Gaming Commission, and Warren Oliver, Executive Director, from the 
Muckleshoot Gaming Commission.  
Director Trujillo attended and observed the first of two physical agility tests in August. The 
Gambling Commission conducts these tests for new Special Agent candidates. The agency 
recruitment team expected 10 individuals to do the physical testing. Eight individuals showed 
and six passed. After passing the physical agility test they continue on to the interview process. 
He asked to please encourage anybody and everybody that is interested, to apply for a job.  
 
Tab 1 
Consent Agenda: 
July Commission Meeting Minutes/ /New Licensees  
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0  
 
Snoqualmie Class III Gaming Employees Licensees 
Commissioner Gray moved to approve Snoqualmie Class III Gaming Employees as presented. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0 
Commissioner Stearns abstained.  
 
Tab 2  
Petition for Rule Change (Duck Unlimited) 
Tina Griffin presented the materials for tab 2. Scott Eisenhauer from Ducks Unlimited joined 
Tina for this presentation. This petition was up for Discussion Only.  Ducks Unlimited petitioned 
for a rule change to allow them to assign a dollar value of the individual raffle ticket of $100 
rather than $25, for any multicomponent packages that they could offer. The other policy 
consideration is that in 2009, the legislature did authorize raffle ticket values up to $100. Chair 
Sizemore asked for clarification regarding members’ dues. Commissioner Patterson asked about 
the proceeds and where they end up. Scott indicated that part of the dues does go to conservation 
efforts and the proceeds stay in Washington.  
 
Tab 3  
Presentation – Budget 2017-19 
Mike Kashmar presented the materials for tab 3. Mike went over the Fiscal Year Recap, Revised 
2017-19 Revenue Estimate, Revised 2017-19 Expenditure Estimate, Revised Estimated Working 
Capital Balance and the Staff Recommendations.  Commissioner Troyer commented on the 
presentation saying it was one of the best budget presentations he has ever seen. Commissioner 
Stearns asked if we could start capturing the amount of expenditures we’re currently doing for 
criminal investigations and other investigations. He stated that it is anticipated that internet 
gambling cases will continue to grow. Commissioner Stearns also asked about the funding for 
the criminal enforcement work the Gambling Commission currently does. Mike told the 



3 
 

Commissioners that the Gambling Commission did submit a fiscal note for 3.5 million in the last 
legislative session.  
 
Commissioner Troyer moved to adopt the 2017-19 Budget as presented by staff.  
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0 

Tab 4 
Presentation – Problem Gambling 

Lisa Saila presented the materials for tab 4. Deputy Director Amy Hunter introduced Lisa in her 
role as Problem Gambling Liaison. Lisa announced that she attended the 31st National 
Conference on Problem Gambling in Portland, Oregon. She attended multiple sessions over four 
days regarding problem gambling treatment, responsible gaming and regulation, community 
recovery, and problem gambling prevention. Lisa also attended a tribal summit along with 
Commissioners Patterson and Stearns. It was the first tribal summit that the council has offered, 
that brought forward the discussion about innovative gaming practices for tribal casinos 
including key leaders from tribal gaming across the entire United States. It allowed for 
networking opportunities with tribal leaders, casino executives, responsible gaming advocates, 
and also treatment providers. Lisa spoke about the breakout sessions offered and how innovative 
we’re becoming with problem gambling issues. She commented on the Mohegan Sun in 
Uncasville, CT where they have a five-year self-exclusion program. If an individual violates the 
self-exclusion program they can be arrested for trespassing and then their jackpot winnings 
could be surrendered. In Oklahoma where the Oklahoma Association for Problem Gambling and 
Compulsive Gambling has a nonprofit organization that partners with tribal casinos for training 
on Problem Gambling, they also have a training program for responsible gaming that includes 
certification as long as the individual goes through the necessary number of steps. 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission, has a six month, one year, two year, or three year self-
exclusion programs. To enroll in one of the programs there, you have to go to either go to the 
casino, the Massachusetts Gaming or Massachusetts Council on Compulsive Gambling. Senator 
Conway asked about specific numbers of individuals that self-exclude. Lisa will get back to the 
Senator and Commissioners with the number at a later date. Commissioner Patterson added 
three points of interest to her;  

1) State-wide banning or self-exclusion program for Washington.  

2) Data sharing with the Tribes and Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling across the 
state to solve the problem gambling situation.  

3) In-patient treatment facility for Washington and revenue sources that the state can tap 
into for treatment costs.  

Commissioner Patterson asked staff to bring back to the Commissioners a plan or road map next 
year, on how the Gambling Commission can make progress in these three areas. Commissioner 
Stearns gave a brief report about attending the conference as well. He spoke about presenting at 
the conference on two separate panels. The first panel was at the tribal summit and he sat next to 
Ray Pineault, President and General Manager of the Mohegan Sun.  The second panel was at the 
National Council on Program Gambling Conference. He asked if staff could follow up on the 
use of state seizure funds that other states are using. Lastly, Commissioner Stearns reported that 
Massachusetts had two programs. First they have Game Sense which was created by the British 
Columbia Lottery and is currently at the Massachusetts Casino at Plainridge Park. It'll be 
expanded to Wynn and MGM Casinos. Game Sense is a user-friendly and customer based 



4 
 

program. The goal of Game Sense is to provide information in a non-threatening way. 
Commissioner Stearns asked staff to follow up with both Massachusetts and British Columbia 
Lottery to learn more about Game Sense.  

Director Trujillo reminded everyone that Dolores Chiechi, Executive Director with Recreational 
Game Association is a board member on the National Council on Problem Gambling.  

Amy mentioned that the tribal summit may be held in New Mexico next year. The July 2017 
National Problem Gambling conference was the second-most attended conference in their 31 
years of having the conference.   

Amy also reminded Commissioners that Maureen Greeley, ECPG and Ann Gray, DSHS, will 
both present at the September Commission meeting to give an update on their programs, 
including how they work together. Evergreen Council is putting together a video for training 
employees, which Director Trujillo and Commissioners Patterson and Stearns were in. She 
announced to the Commissioners that staff will be contacting them to organize a tour of the 
Kalispel Tribe’s Camas Path facility at Airway Heights.  

Senator Conway reiterated Commissioner Patterson’s request for recommendations around the 
three issues to the legislature regarding problem gaming: first, state-wide program for self-
exclusion in Washington. second, inpatient treatment facility in Washington, third, state funding 
source for treatment.  
Commissioner Stearns asked about using state seizure funds for public awareness and best 
practices for educating Washington consumers on gaming, for example using Game Sense or 
Play My Way. Chair Sizemore asked staff to report back on these issues by the October or 
November meeting. Chair Sizemore said the presentation was great. 

Director Trujillo introduced a new employee to the Licensing Unit at Washington State 
Gambling Commission, Mr. Chris Huss. 

 
Public Comment-  
There was no public comment. 

 

General discussion and Other Business- 

Commissioner Troyer asked if there was any news about modernization of gaming. Director 
Trujillo did not have a report back at this time.  

Senator Conway stated the issue of the expansion of gaming is a legislative concern. And any 
time new technology is introduced, if it's going to be used to expand gambling, Senator Conway 
asked that those considerations go to the legislature.  

Senator Wilson asked for the definition of expansion of gambling. Commissioner Patterson 
asked staff to bring information back to the Commissioners on the issue of expansion of 
gaming. Commissioner Gray seconded that idea to ensure that the Commission and staff is 
keeping gambling legal and honest. Chair Sizemore, recognizing staff workload asked for a 
report back at the January Commission Meeting. Director Trujillo agreed with January.  

Chair Sizemore reminded Commissioners that the September commission meeting will be held 
at the Red Lion by the River in Spokane, September 14th and 15th. Staff is trying to coordinate 
some tours for Commissioners and Ex Officios that are able to make the meeting. He said to 
contact Julie Anderson for the details.  

 
 



5 
 

2nd Executive Session 
Chair Sizemore recessed the meeting to Executive Session at 11:07 pursuant to the RCW 
42.30.110, to discuss employee performance evaluations. The Chair said the meeting will 
reconvene in approximately 90 minutes.  

 
Public Meeting 

Chair Sizemore called the Gambling Commission back at 3:29 pm. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 3:30 pm. 
 
 





















































Criminal Case
Update
September 14, 2017
Agent in Charge Danny Lisa, Regulation Unit
Agent in Charge Gary Drumheller, CEU



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 2

Regulation Unit



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 3

26 agents
400+ years combined service
12 Certified Fraud Examiners
3 Certified Public Accountants

5 graduate degrees

Regulation Unit



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 4

2016 Criminal Investigations

24
25

Unlicensed

Licensed

TOTAL CASES

293

40

253Does not include cases investigated by
Criminal Enforcement Unit



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 5

2016 Criminal Investigations
TOTAL CASES

293
Cheating

Theft

Operating w/o License

Fraud/Forgery/Counterfeiting

Money Laundering/Structuring

Illegal Gambling Devices/Gambling

80 cases referred to prosecutor Other



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 6

Suspect used fake cards to steal $3,500+

House‐banked card room in King County

Used stolen cash to gamble

Charges filed:
ID Theft, Unlawful Factoring of Transactions, 
Theft 2, Forgery, Money Laundering

Credit Card Fraud/Money Laundering



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 7

Suspect cheated 103 times at 11 card rooms in 
King & Snohomish Counties

Switched cards between hands on Pai Gow

Stole $23,000+

Arrested for Cheating, Theft

Pleaded guilty to Cheating 2 in King County

Full restitution; $5,000 fine; 2‐year casino ban

Snohomish County case is pending

Cheating & Theft



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 8



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 9

Licensed card room employees pre‐
arranged decks, put into play

Other employee reserved table, wagered

Stole $57,500+ from 2 card rooms in King 
and Pierce Counties

Convicted of Cheating 2

Gambling licenses revoked

Criminal Conspiracy, Cheating, Fraud



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 10



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 11



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 12

Criminal
Enforcement

Unit



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 13

Range of 5 – 30+ years with agency

Average 15 years LE experience

2 newest agents have 34 years combined 
experience

Criminal Enforcement Unit



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 14

Undercover operations

Investigate illegal gambling cases, case with 
gambling nexus

Long‐term investigations

Partner with local, state, federal, tribal law 
enforcement

Members of federal and state task forces

CEU Duties



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 15

2017 Criminal Investigations

56
27

8
9

*HOURS
WORKED

%

Financial Crimes (Fraud, Forgery, Theft)

Bookmaking & Sports Wagering

Animal Fighting & Internet Gambling

Other

*Q4 2016 – Q3 2017



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 16

On the rise: Caregivers stealing from 
vulnerable adults to support gambling 
habits

Strong working relationship with Adult 
Protective Services (APS)

APS referring cases to WSGC

CEU has investigated 6+ cases 

Investigating Elder Abuse



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 17

Suspect possessed grandparents’ debit 
card

Supposed to buy groceries

Withdrew $5,000+ to support gambling 
habit

Charges forwarded to King County 
prosecutor

Theft in the First Degree

Investigating Elder Abuse



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 18

Victim has dementia, resides in 
assisted living facility

Daughter stole $25,000+ gambling 
at casinos

Used for personal expenses

Charges forwarded to King County 
prosecutor

Theft in the First Degree

Investigating Elder Abuse



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 19



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 20

7‐month investigation: Law Enforcement Against Drugs Task Force

Falsified loan applications to acquire
$80,000 from credit union

Money used to start up personally‐
owned dealership

Suspect was part of cockfighting
investigation in 2015

Forgery & money laundering charges filed in Yakima County

Car Salesman Launders Drug Money

No property forfeited at this time



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 21

Authorized Las Vegas casino to withdraw 
$50,000 from account

Dodged reporting requirements by only 
cashing in $9,900 at a time

Pleaded guilty to Unlawful Issuance of 
Bank checks in Franklin County

Will reimburse WSGC $48,000 for costs 
of the investigation

Tri‐City Gambler Charged with Theft



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 22

70 counterfeit $100 bills passed at 9 
casinos

Suspect ID’d by casino staff

Pending case in Thurston County for 
counterfeiting

Arrested on new charges when he 
arrived at courthouse on pending case

Charges filed in four other counties

Serial Counterfeiter Arrested



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 23

Fraudulent Cards Used at Casinos

3‐day period
24 declined trans.
6 withdrawals

$3,000

6‐week period
16 cards used
7 withdrawals

$4,250

2‐week period
50 cards used
2 casinos

107 declined trans.
13 withdrawals

$10,900
Accomplice of S/1

Suspect 1 Suspect 2 Suspect 3



Questions?
Agent in Charge Danny Lisa, Regulation Unit
Agent in Charge Gary Drumheller, CEU



Fee Simplification
September 14, 2017
Mike Kashmar, Chief Financial Officer



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 2

1. What is Fee Simplification?
2. Why are we simplifying fees?
3. When will we implement?
4. How will it work?
5. How are we communicating with licensees?

Agenda



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 3

Replaces class structure: 190+ fees reduced to a handful

Fees due at end of quarter, based on actual gross receipts

Eliminates need for licensees to estimate future receipts

Eliminates collection of revenue associated with ID stamps

One fee for individuals: New license or renewal; in‐state or out‐of‐state

What is ‘Fee Simplification?’



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 4

Punchboards/Pulltabs: Current Schedule
License Annual GGR Fee

One‐Time
Variance

Class A Up to $50,000 $666 $5,000

Class B Up to $100,000 $1,190 $5,000

Class C Up to $200,000 $2,244 $10,000

Class D Up to $300,000 $3,266 $10,000

Class E Up to $400,000 $4,220 $10,000

Class F Up to $500,000 $5,094 $10,000

Class G Up to $600,000 $5,904 $10,000

Class H Up to $700,000 $6,664 $10,000

Class I Up to $800,000 $7,320 $10,000

Class J Up to $1,000,000 $8,302 $20,000

Class K Up to $1,250,000 $9,214 $25,000

License Annual GGR Fee
One‐Time
Variance

Class L Up to $1,500,000 $10,064 $25,000

Class M Up to $1,750,000 $10,766 $25,000

Class N Up to $2,000,000 $11,402 $25,000

Class O Up to $2,500,000 $12,530 $30,000

Class P Up to $3,000,000 $12,952 $35,000

Class Q Up to $4,000,000 $15,264 $40,000

Class R Up to $5,000,000 $17,344 $50,000

Class S Up to $6,000,000 $19,658 $60,000

Class T Up to $7,000,000 $21,972 $70,000

Class U Up to $8,000,000 $24,282 $80,000

Class V Over $8,000,000 $26,596 $80,000



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 5

Punchboards/Pulltabs: New Schedule

License Base Fee
Max.

Annual Fee Rate

PB/PT $700 $13,000 1.43%



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 6

Reduces number of fee classes, making it simpler for licensees, staff

Eliminates need for licensees to estimate future gambling receipts

Rates better reflect agency regulatory resources for each activity

Allows licensees to calculate, pay fees through My Account

Adequately funds the agency

Quarterly collections = more predictable cash flow

Why are we simplifying fees?



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 7

Implementation Date: July 1, 2018

OUTREACH TO LICENSEES

CONSULTATION
W/TRIBAL 
LEADERS

FILE RULES 1

FORMS & PROCESSES

FILE RULES 2

VOTE RULES 1

VOTE RULES 2

FILE RULES 3

ONGOING EDUCATION (thru Oct 19)

VOTE RULES 3

REPORTING (thru Oct 19)

SEP 17 OCT 17 NOV 17 DEC 17 JAN 18 FEB 18 MAR 18 APR 18 MAY 18 JUN 18 JUL 18



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 8

Licensees pay base fee at time of licensure or renewal

Licensees submit quarterly report via My Account: 

Gross gambling receipts 

Fee calculation 

Payment of quarterly fee 

Quarterly fees = schedule rate x gross gambling receipts

MyAccount will assist with calculation

How will fee simplification work?



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 9

Example: Commercial PB/PT

Q1
30‐OCT‐18

Q2
30‐JAN‐19

Q3
30‐APR‐19

Q4
30‐JUL‐19

Current Quarter GGR $60,000 $35,000 $25,000 $30,000

Rate 0.0143 0.0143 0.0143 0.0143

Calculated Fee $858 $501 $358 $429

Less: Base Fee* ($700) ‐ ‐ ‐

Quarterly Fee Owed $158 $501 $358 $429

Cumulative Fee Paid $858 $1,359 $1,716 $2,145

*Base fee due 30‐JUN‐18



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 10

Questions and Comments:
Email:  feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov
Phone:  360‐486‐3588

Updates and FAQs:
wsgc.wa.gov/license‐fee

WAGamblingCommission
WAGambling

Communication Methods



Tab 4: SEPTEMBER 2017 Commission Meeting Agenda.   Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Staff 

Describe the Rule Changes 
This is the first of at least three packages staff will bring forward to make changes to the Commission’s 
licensing fee structure.   

In this first package, rule changes are being recommended in the following chapters: 
• Chapter 230 – 05 WAC – Fees
• Chapter 230 – 03 WAC – Permitting and Licensing rules
At the October meeting, staff anticipates bringing forward rules package #2, which will include time 
frames for activity reports and deleting references to the term “classes.” While the current fee structure is 
based on a “classes” system, the new proposed system is based primarily on gross receipts. Staff 
anticipates approximately 90 plus rules use the term “classes.” 

A third rules package will include any corrections or updates to the rules filed in packages #1 or #2. This 
package would likely be on your February agenda. 

Some of the key rules in Chapter 05 (Fees) in this first package are: 
• New proposed fee schedule (WAC’s 230 –05–160, 230–05–165 and WAC 230–05–170);
• Calculating quarterly license fees (WAC 230–05–122);
• Penalties for late filing of quarterly license reports or late payment of quarterly license fees (WAC

230-05-132);

• New definitions needed for this new way of calculating fees; for example:
o Defining “base license fee.” (WAC 230–05–104)
o Defining “maximum annual license fee.” (WAC 230–05–106)
o Defining “quarterly license fees.” (WAC 230–05–108)
o Defining “gross gambling receipts rate.” (WAC 230 – 05 – 110)

Some rules are simply being moved from Chapter 06 (Rules for all licensees) to Chapter 05 (Fees).  

Most of the key rules in Chapter 03 (Permitting and Licensing rules) in this first package are being made 
because the current fee schedule includes descriptions of what a license authorizes, rather than simply 
stating the fee for the license.  

Attachments: 
Current Fee Schedule: 

Rule Simplification Changes (Package #1) 
Various Rules in: 
• Chapter 230 – 05 WAC – Fees
• Chapter 230 – 03 WAC – Permitting and Licensing rules

September 2017 – Discussion and Possible Filing 



Fee Schedule – Bona Fide Charitable / Nonprofit Organization (Pink) 
Fee Schedule – Commercial Stimulant  / Profit-Seeking Organization (Blue) 

Policy Considerations 
The Commissioners began considering changing the fee structure in 2014. The current fee structure was 
created over 40 years ago.  It began with 25 fees.  Today the Gambling Commission has approximately 
194 different fees for Commercial and Non-Profit organizations and individuals. This fee schedule is 
typically based on a “class” system, which can be cumbersome for licensees and agency staff. The 
Gambling Commission is looking to simplify this current system to allow it to be easier to navigate and 
have a licensing fee schedule that is more predictable for both the agency and its licensees.  

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends filing for further discussion. 

 

 











  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-05 WAC
 

FEES
 

Last Update: 3/30/16
 

WAC 

RULES FOR PERMITS OR LICENSE YEARS ENDING BEFORE JUNE 30, 2018
 

230-05-001
 

Prorating or refunding of fees.
 

230-05-005
 

Fees for review of gambling equipment, supplies, services, or games.
 

230-05-010
 

Returned payments.
 

230-05-015 

230-05-016 

230-05-017 

230-05-018
 

Two-part payment plan for license fees. 

Exceeding license class. 

Failing to apply for license class upgrade. 

Partial refund of license fees if gambling receipts limit not met.
 

230-05-020
 

Charitable or nonprofit organization fees.
 

230-05-025
 

Commercial stimulant fees.
 

230-05-030
 

Fees for other businesses.
 

230-05-035 

 

230-05-101 

230-05-104 

230-05-106 

Individuals license fees. 

RULES FOR PERMITS OR LICENSE YEARS ENDING ON OR AFTER JUNE 30, 2018 

Implementation of new permit and license fees – effective dates. 

Defining “base license fee.” 

Defining “maximum annual license fee.” 



WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING

203-05-108 

230-05-110 

230-05-112 

230-05-114 

230-05-116 

230-05-120 

230-05-122 

230-05-124 

230-05-126 

230-05-128 

230-05-132 

230-05-134 

230-05-136 

230-05-138 

230-05-140 

230-05-142 

230-05-160 

230-05-165 

230-05-170 

230-05-175 

Defining “quarterly license fees.” 

Defining “gross gambling receipts rate.” 

Defining “gross gambling receipts.” 

Defining “net win.” 

Defining “quarterly license report.” 

Paying annual license fee.  

Calculating quarterly license fees. 

Quarterly license fees and license reports. 

Online filing and payments required with waivers available upon request for good cause. 

Renew your license in a timely manner. 

Late filing of quarterly license reports or late payment of quarterly license fees - pen-

alties. 

Amending quarterly license reports and changes to quarterly license fees paid. 

Prorating and refunding fees. 

Returned payments. 

Outstanding fees. 

Fees or review of gambling equipment, supplies, services or games. 

Charitable or nonprofit organization fees. 

Commercial stimulant organization fees. 

Fees for other businesses. 

Individual license fees. (Changes will be part of rules at October Meeting)



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

 
RULES FOR PERMITS OR LICENSE YEARS ENDING  BEFORE JUNE 30, 2018

 

WAC 230-05-005 Fees for review of gambling equipment, supplies, 

services, or games. You must apply to us if you want to submit gambling 

equipment, supplies, services, or games for our review. You must pay the 

application deposit before we perform the review. You must also reimburse 

us for any additional costs of the review.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-

05-005, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-016 Exceeding license class.  

(1) Licensees must not exceed the gross gambling receipts limits for 

their license class during any annual license period.
 

(2) Licensees must apply a projection of year-to-date receipts to 

the remaining period of their license and, if it indicates that it is 

reasonably likely that they may exceed their license, they must immedi-

ately:
 

(a) Apply for a license that authorizes the anticipated level of 

gross gambling receipts; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(b) Submit the fee required for the new license, minus the amount 

originally submitted for the previous license, plus a change of classi-

fication fee.
 

(3) If we issue a license upgrade, it is valid only for the re-

mainder of the original term of the license.
 

(4) Licensees may exceed license class limits once, by the amount 

shown in the fees table, without having to upgrade or pay the penalties 

as long as they upgrade to the higher license class the next time they 

renew their license.
 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-017 Failing to apply for license class upgrade. (1) If li-

censees fail to apply for a license class upgrade and exceed the license 

class limit within a present or previous license year, we assess an 

additional fee. We charge an additional fee of up to fifty percent of 

the difference between the fee for the present license class and the new 

license class, or one thousand dollars, whichever is less.
 

(2) Licensees must pay any required license class upgrade fee, plus 

any additional fee required by subsection (1) of this section, within 

thirty days of our notification.
 

(3) Failure to pay the fees may result in an immediate summary 

suspension of all licenses.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-018 Partial refund of license fees if gambling receipts limit 

not met. (1) Licensees may apply for a partial refund of their license 

fee when their annual gross gambling receipts are less than the minimum 

for the class of license we issued to them.
 

(2) Licensees may receive a refund for the difference between the 

fees actually paid and the fees that would normally apply to the level 

of gross gambling receipts actually received during the period less our 

processing costs.
 

(3) Licensees may make their request for refund after the end of 

any annual license period and before the end of the next annual license 

period.
 

 

RULES FOR PERMITS OR LICENSE YEARS ENDING ON OR AFTER JUNE 30, 2018 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-101 Implementation of new permit and license fees. 

In order to implement a new permit and annual license fee structure, 

WACs 230-05-104 through 230-05-175 will apply to all: 

(1) Permits or license years ending on or after June 30, 2018; and 

(2) Permits or licensees issued on or after July 1, 2018. 

(3) Other fees assessed in this chapter on or after July 1, 2018. 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 6 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-104 Defining “base license fee.” 

(1) “Base license fee” is the fee you pay us when you: 

(a) Apply for an organization license or permit; or 

(b) Renew your organization’s license or annual permit. 

(2) “Base license fee” is the minimum annual license fee a licensed 

organization or permit holder will pay for operating an author-

ized activity. 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-106 Defining “maximum annual license fee.”  

“Maximum annual license fee” is the most you will pay to operate an 

authorized activity for the license year, which includes the: 

(1) Base license fee; and 

(2) Quarterly license fees.  

  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 7 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-108 Defining “quarterly license fees.” 

“Quarterly license fees” means the licensee’s gross gambling receipts 

from the previous quarter multiplied by the gross gambling receipts 

rate. 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-110 Defining “gross gambling receipts rate.” 

“Gross gambling receipts rate” is the rate listed in this chapter that 

licensees use to calculate their quarterly license fees. 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-112 Defining “gross gambling receipts.” 

(1) “Gross gambling receipts” means the amount due to any opera-

tor of an authorized activity as described in subsection (5).   

(2) The amounts must be stated in U.S. currency. 

(3) The value must be before any deductions for prizes or other 

expenses, such as over/short. 

(4) “Gross gambling receipts” does not include fees from players 

to enter player-supported jackpots.  However, any portion of wa-

gers deducted for any purpose other than increasing current 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 8 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

prizes or repayment of amounts used to seed prizes are “gross 

gambling receipts.” 

(5) Gross gambling receipts for authorized activities: 

Activity: Gross gambling receipts includes amounts due to 

any operator for: 

(a) Punchboard and pull-

tab 

Purchasing chances to play 

(b) Raffles and enhanced 

raffles 

Purchasing chances to enter 

(c) Bingo Fees or purchase of cards to participate 

(d) Amusement games • Fees to participate;  

• Rent or lease payments paid to licensees for 

allowing operation of an amusement game on 

their premises 

(e) Card games • “Net win” from house-banked card games;   

• Tournament entry fees;  

• Administrative fees from player-supported 

jackpots;  

• Fees to participate in nonhouse-banked card 

games 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 9 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(f) Manufacturers and 

Distributors 

(i) Fees from sales, rentals, leases, royal-

ties, and service fees collected for the 

following gambling equipment in Washing-

ton, to include but not limited to: 

• Punchboards and pull-tabs;  

• Devices for dispensing pull-tabs;  

• Electronic devices for conducting, facili-

tating or accounting for the results of gam-

bling activities;  

• Cards;   

• Dice;  

• Gambling chips;  

• Cash exchange terminals;  

• Progressive meters;  

• Gambling software;  

• License agreements;  

• Card shuffling devices;  

• Graphical game layouts for table games; 

• Ace finders or no-peek devices; 

• Roulette wheels;  

• Keno equipment;  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 10 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

• Tables manufactured exclusively for gambling 

purposes;  

• Bet totalizers;  

• Electronic devices for reading or displaying 

outcomes of gambling activities;  

• Tribal lottery systems and components 

thereof 

(ii) Fees from the service, repair and modifi-

cation of gambling equipment in Washing-

ton, to include but not limited to: 

• Charges for labor and parts for repairing 

gambling equipment;  

• Service fees related to gambling operations; 

• Training or set-up fees;  

• Maintenance contract fees related to gam-

bling equipment and operations 

(g) Gambling Service 

Suppliers 

Fees from gambling-related services provided in 

or to be used in Washington, to include but not 

limited to: 

• Consulting, advisory or management services 

related to gambling;  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 11 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

• Interest from financing the purchase or 

lease of gambling equipment, infrastructure 

or facilities or equipment that supports 

gambling operations;  

• Acting as a lending agent, loan services or 

placement agent;  

• Assembly of components for gambling equip-

ment to be used under a contract with a li-

censed manufacturer;  

• Ongoing financial arrangements for gambling 

related software with a licensed manufac-

turer; 

• Installing, integrating, maintaining, or 

servicing digital surveillance systems that 

allow direct access to the operating system; 

• Training individuals to conduct authorized 

gambling activities; 

• Performing testing and certification of 

tribal lottery systems in meeting require-

ments specified in the tribal-state com-

pacts; 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 12 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

• Providing nonmanagement related recordkeep-

ing or storage services for punchboard and 

pull-tab operators 

(h) Punchboard/Pull-tab 

Service Businesses 

Providing nonmanagement related recordkeeping 

or storage services for punchboard and pull-tab 

operators 

(i) Fund Raising Event 

Distributors 

Fees from contracts to organize and conduct 

recreational gaming activities 

(j) Fund Raising Events 

and Agricultural Fairs 

Fees received from the operation of bingo, 

amusement games, raffles, lotteries, contests 

of chance, and/or net win from table games op-

erated at a fund-raising event.   

 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-114 Defining “net win.” 

“Net win” means gross wagers received from gambling activities or 

fund-raising events minus the: 

(1) Amount paid to players for winning wagers; and 

(2) Accrual of prizes for progressive jackpot contests; and 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 13 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(3) Repayment of amounts used to seed guaranteed progressive jackpot 

prizes. 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-116 Defining “quarterly license report.” 

“Quarterly license report” means the report: 

(1) Filed by each licensed organization, annual permit holder and 

fund-raising event licensee thirty days after the end of each 

quarter; and  

(2) Which includes the licensee’s gross gambling receipts from the 

previous quarter multiplied by the gross gambling rate to calcu-

late the quarterly license fee due to the commission. 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-120 Paying annual license fee. 

(1) All licensed organizations will pay annual license fees in up to 

five payments.  The annual license fee includes: 

(a) A base license fee paid with your: 

(i) Initial application for a new license or permit; or 

(ii) License renewal or annual permit application; and 

(b) Quarterly license fees based on the gross gambling receipts 

reported on your quarterly license report.  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 14 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(2) Licensed organizations starting a new activity will begin paying 

quarterly license fees on that activity upon completion of the 

first quarter, whether a partial or full quarter, after their li-

cense or annual permit was issued. 

(3) Individual licensees will pay an annual license fee with their 

initial application or license renewal application. 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-122 Calculating quarterly license fees. 

(1) The quarterly license fee is calculated based on the gross gam-

bling receipts from the previous quarter as reported on your 

quarterly license report. 

(2) Each license year, the quarterly license fees will be offset by 

the base license fee. (For example, if your base license fee is 

$65 and your quarterly license fee is $45 for the first quarter, 

no additional amount is due for the first quarter.  You would 

offset any future quarterly license fees by the remaining $20 of 

your base license fee.) 

 

 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 15 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-124 Quarterly license fees and license reports. 

All licensed organizations must submit quarterly license fees and li-

cense reports to us for each licensed gambling activity beginning with 

the first quarter of their license year.  The quarterly license fee is 

due with the quarterly license report.  The quarterly license reports 

must be in the format we require and must: 

(1)  

Cover the period: Be received by us no later than: 

January 1 through March 31 April 30 

April 1 through June 30 July 30 

July 1 through September 30 October 30 

October 1 through December 31 January 30 

 

(2) Be received online at our administrative office or postmarked no 

later than the dates indicated above; and 

(3) Be submitted even if there is no quarterly license fee payable to 

us; and  

(4) Be accurate; and 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 16 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(5) Be completed by the highest ranking executive officer or a de-

signee. If someone other than the licensee or an employee pre-

pares the report, the preparer must include his or her name and 

business telephone number on the report; and 

(6) Be submitted for any period of time the license was valid, even 

if there was no gambling activity or the gambling license was not 

renewed.   

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-126 Online filing and payments required with waivers avail-

able upon request for good cause. 

(1) All licensees must submit the following online: 

(a) Renewal application and base license fees; and  

(b) Quarterly license fees; and  

(c) Quarterly license reports. 

(2) We may waive these requirements if a licensed organization can 

show good cause.  The reasons for good cause include: 

(a) You do not have access to the internet using your own com-

puter or similar equipment; or  

(b) You do not have a bank account; or  

(c) Your bank is unable to send electronic fund transactions; or 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 17 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(d) Some other circumstance or condition exists that, in our 

judgement, prevents you from submitting online.  

(3) We may waive these requirements if a licensed individual can show 

good cause.  The reasons for good cause include: 

(a) You do not have access to the internet using your own com-

puter or similar equipment; or  

(b) You do not have a bank account or credit card; or  

(c) Your bank is unable to send electronic fund transactions; or 

(d) Some other circumstance or condition exists that, in our 

judgement, prevents you from submitting online.  

(4) You must request a waiver when applying for a new license or per-

mit.   

(5) A waiver will cover all fees and reports required under subsec-

tion (1). 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-128 Renew your license in a timely manner. 

(1) You must renew online, unless you have received a waiver as out-

lined in this chapter and allow enough time to: 

(a) Print the license prior to midnight before the license ex-

pires; or  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 18 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(b) Have us print the license and mail it to you so you receive 

it before your license expires. 

(2) If you have a waiver and are not renewing your license online, 

you must ensure a properly completed renewal application and all 

applicable base license fees are received at our administrative 

office in Lacey at least fifteen days before the expiration date 

on the license.  

(3) If you do not submit a properly completed renewal application and 

all fees and your license expires, you must immediately stop the 

gambling activity covered by your license. 

(4) If your license expires, you must submit an application and you 

must not operate any gambling activity until a new license is is-

sued.   

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-132 Late filing of quarterly license reports or late pay-

ment of quarterly license fees - penalties. 

(1) Licensees who do not file their quarterly license reports and/or 

pay quarterly license fees within thirty days from the end of 

each quarter are in violation of this chapter. 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 19 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(2) Licensees will be afforded one thirty day late filing and payment 

period after their quarterly license reports and quarterly li-

cense fees are due. However, a twenty-five dollar fee will be 

charged for each day a licensee fails to file a quarterly license 

report or pay quarterly license fees during the thirty day late 

filing and payment period. 

(3) A licensee’s failure to file quarterly license reports or pay 

quarterly license fees during the thirty day late filing and pay-

ment period could result in administrative action against your 

licenses. 

(4) Licensees will be responsible for paying any outstanding license 

fees, including but not limited to, late fees and any additional 

costs associated with the collection of these fees before a li-

cense suspension is lifted or a new licensing application is ap-

proved. 

  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 20 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-134 Amending quarterly license reports and changes to quar-

terly license fees paid. 

(1) You must amend any previously submitted quarterly license reports 

immediately upon discovering a discrepancy in reporting your 

gross gambling receipts or quarterly license fees paid. 

(2) Any additional quarterly license fees due as a result of an 

amended quarterly license report will be due immediately upon 

filing your amended quarterly license report. You may face admin-

istrative action against your license for failing to accurately 

report.  If you overpaid your quarterly license fees, you may re-

ceive a refund after we deduct our processing costs. 

(3) You must submit amended quarterly license reports and any related 

payments to us online unless you have a waiver. 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-136 Prorating or refunding fees. 

(1) We may prorate organization license fees when we adjust expira-

tion dates to schedule our workload. 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 21 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(2) We may adjust expiration dates to end on the same day for organi-

zations licensed for more than one activity.  Whenever we adjust 

license expiration dates under this provision, we may prorate the 

required fees.   

(3) We will not prorate or refund fees when: 

(a) You discontinue your gambling activities; or 

(b) You voluntarily surrender your license or permit; or 

(c) We suspend or revoke your license. 

(4) We keep a portion of your application or license fees for pro-

cessing costs when: 

(a) We deny or administratively close your application; or 

(b) You withdraw your application; or  

(c) You overpaid us; or 

(d) We received duplicate license fees. 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-138 Returned payments. 

(1) If your bank returns your payment to us for any reason, you must: 

(a) Pay us in full, by certified check, money order, or cash, 

within five days of notification; and  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 22 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(b) Reimburse our processing costs, which would include, but not 

be limited to, time spent notifying you and seeking payment. 

(2) If you fail to pay within five days of notification: 

(a) We will administratively close your application; or 

(b) Your license expires and all gambling activity must stop. 

(3) If we administratively close your application or your license ex-

pires, you must give us a new application with fees paid by cer-

tified check, money order, or cash in order to be considered for 

a license. 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-140 Outstanding fees. 

(1) You must pay all outstanding fees assessed and owed if you: 

(a) Stop operating the gambling activity; or  

(b) Close your business; or 

(c) Surrender your license; or  

(d) Do not renew your license; or  

(e) Your license is revoked. 

(2) If you do not pay, we may take action against other licenses you 

hold or refer the debt to collections, or both. 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 23 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(3) Licensees will be responsible for paying any outstanding license 

fees, including late fees, and any additional licensing or pro-

cessing costs associated with the collection of these fees before 

a licensing suspension is lifted or any new licensing application 

is approved.  

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-142 Fees for review of gambling equipment, supplies, ser-

vices, or games.  

(1) You must submit gambling equipment, supplies, services, or games 

for our review. 

(2) You must pay the application deposit before we perform the review. 

(3) You must also reimburse us for any additional costs of the review. 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-160 Charitable or nonprofit organization fees. 

Bona fide charitable and nonprofit organizations must pay the follow-

ing fees: 

 

 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 24 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(1) Annual licenses: 

License Type Base License 

Fee 

Gross Gambling 

Receipts Rate 

Maximum Annual 

License Fee 

Amusement games $65 plus $65 

per approved 

location 

0.730% $1,000 

Bingo $65 0.460% $11,000 

Card games – 

house-banked 

$10,000 1.462% $40,000 

Card games – 

nonhouse-banked 

$65 0.430% $1,000 

Combination $125 - - 

Fund-raising 

equipment dis-

tributor 

$268 1.430% $699 

Punch-

board/pull-tabs 

$650 1.430% $10,000 

Raffles $65 3.380% $2,000 

Enhanced raf-

fles 

$5,000 0.430% $32,000 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 25 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(2) Event licenses or permits: 

License Type Base License 

Fee 

Gross Gambling 

Receipts Rate 

Maximum Annual 

License Fee 

Fund-raising 

event 

$180 3.130% $1,000 

Recreational 

gaming activity 

$65 - - 

Special prop-

erty bingo / 

Change of bingo 

premises 

$30 - - 

 

(3) Change fees: 

Change of: Fee 

Name $100 

Location $100 

Fund-raising event location, 

date or time 

$50 

 

(4) Other fees: 

Transaction Fee 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 26 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Add a new amusement game loca-

tion 

$65 

Duplicate license $50 

Review, inspection, and/or 

evaluation of gambling equip-

ment, supplies, services, 

games, or schemes.  

Deposit and cost reimbursement 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-165 Commercial stimulant organization fees. 

All commercial stimulant organizations must pay the following fees: 

(1) Annual licenses: 

License Type Base License 

Fee 

Gross Gambling 

Receipts Rate 

Maximum Annual 

License Fee 

Card games – 

nonhouse-banked 

$65 1.462% $20,0000 

Card games – 

house-banked 

$10,000 1.462 $40,000 

Punch 

boards/pull-

tabs 

$700 1.430% $13,000 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 27 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

 

(2) Change fees: 

Change of: Fee 

Name $100 

Location $100 

Business classification (same 

owners) 

$100 

Corporate stock/limited liabil-

ity company shares/units 

$100 

License transfers $100 

 

(3) Other fees: 

Transaction Fee 

Duplicate License $50 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-170 Fees for other businesses. 

All other business organizations must pay the following fees: 

(1) Annual licenses or permits: 

License Type Base License 

Fee 

Gross Gambling 

Receipts Rate 

Maximum Annual 

License Fee 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 28 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Agricultural 

fair bingo (an-

nual permit) 

$200 - - 

Call centers 

for enhanced 

raffles 

$4,800   

Commercial 

amusement games 

$500 plus $65 

per approved 

location 

1.130% $11,000 

Distributor $699 1.430% 4,498 

Fund-raising 

event distribu-

tor 

$268 1.430% $699 

Manufacturer $699 1.430% $4,498 

Manufacturer’s 

special sales 

permit 

$224 - - 

Punch-

board/pull-tab 

service busi-

ness permit 

$250   



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 29 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Gambling Ser-

vice supplier 

$728 1.430% $880 

 

(2) Events or permits: 

License or 

Permit Type 

Base License 

Fee 

Gross Gambling 

Receipts Rate 

Maximum Annual 

License Fee 

Recreational 

gaming activ-

ity 

$65 - - 

Special prop-

erty bingo 

$30 - - 

 

(3) Change fees: 

Change of: Fee 

Name $100 

Location $100 

Business classification (same 

owners) 

$100 

Corporate stock/limited liabil-

ity company shares/units 

$100 

License transfers $100 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 30 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

 

(4) Other fees: 

Transaction Fee 

Add a new amusement game loca-

tion 

$65 

Defective punchboard/pull-tab 

cost recovery fees 

Up to $100 

Duplicate license $50 

Pre- and post-licensing inves-

tigations 

Cost reimbursement 

Review, inspection, and/or 

evaluation of gambling equip-

ment, supplies, services, 

games, schemes, or group 12 

amusement games 

Deposit and cost reimbursement 

 

 
 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-03 WAC
 

PERMITTING AND LICENSING RULES
 

Last Update: 9/8/16
 

WAC
 

ACTIVITIES REQUIRING A PERMIT AND RULES FOR THOSE ACTIVITIES
 

230-03-005
 

Permits for recreational gaming activities.
 

230-03-010 Fund-raising equipment distributors must report recreational gaming activities. 

230-03-015
 

Permits to conduct bingo at agricultural fairs.
 

230-03-018
 

One annual change of bingo premises allowed.
 

230-03-020
 

Punchboard and pull-tab service business permit.
 

230-03-025
 

Applying for a manufacturer's special sales permit. 

APPLYING FOR A LICENSE
 

230-03-030
 

Other licenses, certificates, inspections, or permits needed to be considered for a gam-

bling license.
 

230-03-035
 

Applying for a license.
 

230-03-040
 

Signing the application.
 

230-03-045
 

Defining substantial interest holder.
 

230-03-050
 

Additional information required from applicants for licensing.
 

230-03-052
 

Registered agent to be appointed by out-of-state applicants and licensees.
 

230-03-055
 

Reporting changes to application.
 

230-03-060
 

Fingerprinting.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-03-061
 

Fingerprinting persons holding an interest in the building of house-banked card room li-

censees or charitable or nonprofit licensees in regulatory groups III, IV, or V.
 

230-03-065
 

Spouses must also be qualified.
 

230-03-070
 

Training required for licensing.
 

230-03-075 

 

Withdrawing your application. 

LICENSE APPROVAL
 

230-03-080 

 

License approval process. 

LICENSE DENIAL, SUSPENSION, OR REVOCATION 

230-03-085
 

Denying, suspending, or revoking an application, license or permit.
 

ADDITIONAL LICENSING REQUIREMENTS FOR CHARITABLE AND NONPROFIT APPLICANTS
 

230-03-090
 

Defining "agricultural."
 

230-03-095
 

Defining "athletic."
 

230-03-100
 

Defining "charitable."
 

230-03-105
 

Defining "civic."
 

230-03-110
 

Defining "educational."
 

230-03-115
 

Defining "fraternal."
 

230-03-120
 

Defining "patriotic."
 

230-03-125
 

Defining "political."
 

230-03-130
 

Defining "religious."
 

230-03-135
 

Defining "social."
 

230-03-140
 

Full and regular membership requirements.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-03-145
 

Additional requirements for charitable and nonprofit licensing.
 

230-03-150
 

Additional requirements for branches or chapters of eligible parent organizations.
 

230-03-152
 

Additional requirements for enhanced raffles.
 

230-03-155
 

Submitting a proposed plan of operations for charitable and nonprofit organizations.
 

230-03-160 

 

230-03-161 

230-03-162
 

Licensed charitable or nonprofit organizations prohibited from managing or operating com-

mercial gambling activities. 

Applying for a combination license. 

Applying for a fund-raising event license. 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR COMMERCIAL LICENSING AMUSEMENT GAME LICENSE APPLICANTS
 

230-03-163 

230-03-164 

230-03-165
 

Applying for a charitable or nonprofit amusement game license. 

Applying for a commercial amusement game license. 

Information required with license application for commercial amusement games.
 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR COMMERCIAL STIMULANT APPLICANTS
 

230-03-170
 

Defining "business premises."
 

230-03-175
 

Requirements for commercial stimulant businesses.
 

ADDITIONAL LICENSING REQUIREMENTS CARD ROOM LICENSE APPLICANTS
 

230-03-177 

230-03-178 

 

230-03-179 

230-03-180
 

Applying to operate nonhouse-banked card games – charitable or nonprofit organizations. 

Applying to operate nonhouse-banked card games and/or a Class F endorsement - commercial 

organizations. 

Applying to operate a house-banked card game. 

Additional information required for a house-banked card room application.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR MANUFACTURER, DISTRIBUTOR, AND GAMBLING SERVICE SUPPLIER LICENSE APPLICANTS 

REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSING MANUFACTURERS AND DISTRIBUTORS APPLICANTS
 

230-03-185
 

Applying for a manufacturer license.
 

230-03-190 

230-03-192
 

Applying for a distributor license. 

Applying for a fund-raising equipment distributor license.
 

230-03-195
 

Additional information required from manufacturer and distributor license applicants.
 

230-03-200
 

Defining "gambling equipment."
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSING GAMBLING SERVICE SUPPLIERS APPLICANTS
 

230-03-210
 

Applying for a gambling service supplier license.
 

230-03-211
 

Defining "lending agent," "loan servicer," or "placement agent."
 

230-03-212
 

Defining "regulated lending institution."
 

230-03-215
 

Gambling service suppliers prohibited from assuming ultimate responsibility.
 

230-03-220
 

Marketing level restrictions for punchboard or pull-tab manufacturers, distributors, or 

operators.
 

230-03-225
 

Marketing level restrictions for punchboard or pull-tab gambling service suppliers.
 

REQUIREMENTS FORLICENSING LINKED BINGO PRIZE PROVIDERS APPLICANTS
 

230-03-230
 

Applying for linked bingo prize provider license.
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSING CALL CENTERS APPLICANTS
 

230-03-232
 

Applying for an enhanced raffle call center license.
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR INDIVIDUAL LICENSES
 

LICENSING CHARITABLE OR NONPROFIT GAMBLING MANAGERS
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-03-235
 

Applying for charitable or nonprofit gambling manager license.
 

230-03-240
 

Working before receiving a charitable or nonprofit gambling manager license.
 

230-03-245
 

Licensing period for charitable or nonprofit gambling manager.
 

LICENSING COMMERCIAL GAMBLING MANAGERS
 

230-03-250
 

Applying for a commercial gambling manager license.
 

230-03-255
 

Working before receiving a commercial gambling manager license.
 

230-03-260
 

Licensing period for commercial gambling manager.
 

LICENSING CARD ROOM EMPLOYEES
 

230-03-265
 

Applying for a card room employee license.
 

230-03-270
 

Working as a card room employee before receiving a license.
 

230-03-275
 

Licensing period for card room employee.
 

230-03-280
 

Substantial interest holders not required to be licensed as card room employees.
 

230-03-285
 

Class III gaming employee working as card room employee.
 

LICENSING REPRESENTATIVESEPRESENTATIVE LICENSING
 

230-03-300
 

Applying for a manufacturer's representative license.
 

230-03-305
 

Applying for a distributor's representative license.
 

230-03-310
 

Applying for a gambling service supplier's representative license.
 

230-03-315
 

Applying for a linked bingo prize provider representative license.
 

230-03-317
 

Applying for an enhanced raffle call center representative license.
 

230-03-320
 

Substantial interest holders not required to be licensed as representatives.
 

230-03-325
 

Office, clerical, or warehouse workers not required to be licensed as representatives.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 6 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-03-330
 

Representing one or more licensed businesses.
 

230-03-335
 

Representatives must not work before receiving a license.
 

230-03-340
 

Gambling service supplier representative must report conflicts of interest.
 

DISPOSITION OF SECTIONS FORMERLY CODIFIED IN THIS CHAPTER
 

230-03-001
 

"We," "our," and "us" mean the commission and staff. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. 

WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-001, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by 

WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070.
 

230-03-051
 

Incorporated cities and towns exempt from some information requirements for application. 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-051, filed 

3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), filed 10/22/07, effec-

tive 1/1/08. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070.
 

230-03-290
 

Card room employees working for additional employer or changing employer. [Statutory Au-

thority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-290, filed 3/22/06, effective 

1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 08-21-087 (Order 633), filed 10/14/08, effective 1/1/09. Statu-

tory Authority: RCW 9.46.070.
 

ACTIVITIES REQUIRING A PERMIT AND RULES FOR THOSE ACTIVITIES
 

WAC 230-03-015 Permits to conduct bingo at agricultural fairs. (1) You 

must apply to us if you wish to operate bingo games at agricultural 

fairs licensed to conduct bingo. You may apply for either:
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 7 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(a) An annual permit to conduct bingo games at different agricul-

tural fairs; or
 

(b) A special property bingo permit to conduct bingo games at a 

single agricultural fair.
 

(2) Each agricultural fair is fully responsible for the operation 

of bingo conducted under its license. 

(3) A commercial or charitable or nonprofit organization may ap-

ply for a special property bingo permit. 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-

03-015, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

APPLYING FOR A LICENSE 

WAC 230-03-035 Applying for a license. (1) You must fully com-

plete the license application form we provide in order to be consid-

ered for a license. You must return it, along with the appropriate 

fees, to our headquarters office.
 

(2) If your application is incomplete, you must provide us with 

the required items within thirty days of notification or we may admin-

istratively close the application. 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 8 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(3) Applicants for a new organization license or permit will sub-

mit the base license fee for each authorized activity they are apply-

ing for with their application. 

(4) Applicants for a new individual license will submit the annu-

al license fee they are applying for with their application.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-

03-035, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-03-060 Fingerprinting. (1) The following persons must 

submit fingerprints and undergo a national criminal history background 

check:
 

(a) Substantial interest holders of commercial businesses and 

charitable or nonprofit organizations who live or have lived out of 

the state in the last ten years; and
 

(b) Card room employees, commercial and nonprofit gambling manag-

ers, and manufacturer, distributor, service supplier, call centers for 

enhanced raffles, and linked bingo prize provider representatives; and
 

(c) Any other substantial interest holder when we have infor-

mation they may not be qualified for licensure or to participate in a 

gambling activity.; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 9 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(2) Recreational gaming activity and agricultural fair permit 

holders do not need to submit fingerprints.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0209. WSR 13-19-056 (Order 

692), § 230-03-060, filed 9/16/13, effective 10/17/13. Statutory Au-

thority: RCW 9.46.070(7). WSR 13-17-018 (Order 690), § 230-03-060, 

filed 8/9/13, effective 9/9/13. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 

06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-060, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-03-161 Applying for a combination license. 

(1) Charitable or nonprofit organizations may apply for a combination 

license to operate one or more of the following gambling activi-

ties: 

(a) Authorized nonhouse-banked card games without collection of 

a fee to play; and 

(b) Raffles with gross gambling receipts up to two thousand dol-

lars during the license year; and 

(c) Bingo with gross gambling receipts up to twenty-five thou-

sand dollars during the license year; and 

(d) Amusement games, owned and operated by the organization, 

with gross gambling receipts up to seven thousand five hun-

dred dollars during the license year.  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 10 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(2) You must apply for a separate license if any of the gambling ac-

tivities in (1)(b) through (1)(d) you operate will exceed the 

gross gambling receipts limits specified during your license 

year. 

 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-03-162 Applying for a fund-raising event license. 

(1) Charitable or nonprofit organizations may offer fund-raising 

events as authorized by RCW 9.46.0233. 

(2) Your organization must apply for a fund-raising event license to 

operate gambling activities for: 

(a) One event not to exceed twenty-four consecutive hours; or 

(b) One event not to exceed seventy-two consecutive hours; or  

(c) Participation in joint fund-raising events; or 

(d) One limited fund-raising event not to exceed six consecutive 

hours. 

 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR COMMERCIAL AMUSEMENT GAME LICENSE APPLI-

CANTS
 

NEW SECTION 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 11 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-03-163 Applying for a charitable or nonprofit amusement game 

license. 

You must apply for a charitable or nonprofit amusement game license if 

your organization owns, leases or rents approved amusement games and: 

(1) Operates the approved amusement games in your licensed loca-

tion; or 

(2) Rents or leases approved amusement games for operation in 

approved locations. 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-03-164 Applying for a commercial amusement game license. 

(1)You must apply for a commercial amusement game license if your 

business: 

(a) Owns and operates approved amusement games in your licensed 

location; or  

(b) Rents or leases approved amusement games for operation in 

approved locations.   

(2) Your business can operate approved amusement games in multiple ap-

proved locations under the same license as long as the locations are 

owned by the same business. 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR COMMERCIAL STIMULANT APPLICANTS
 

ADDITIONAL LICENSING REQUIREMENTS FOR CARD ROOMS APPLICANTS
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 12 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-03-177 Applying to operate nonhouse-banked card games – chari-

table or nonprofit organizations.  

(1) You must apply for a nonhouse-banked card game license if you 

are a charitable or nonprofit organization that wants to: 

(a) Offer for play authorized nonhouse-banked card games, 

whether a fee to play is charged or not; and/or  

(b)Conduct approved tournaments.  

(2) You may not operate more than 15 card tables. 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-03-178 Applying to operate nonhouse-banked card games and/or a 

Class F endorsement - commercial organizations. 

(1) You must apply for a nonhouse-banked card game license if you are 

a commercial stimulant business that wants to: 

(a) Offer for play authorized nonhouse-banked card games, wheth-

er a fee to play is charged or not; and/or 

(b) Conduct approved tournaments. 

(2) You must apply for a Class F endorsement to use: 

(a) Authorized alternative fee collections; and/or 

(b) Player-supported jackpots. 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 13 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(3) You may not operate more than 15 card tables. 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-03-179 Applying to operate house-banked card games. 

(1) You must apply for a house-banked card game license if you want 

to offer for play authorized house-banked card games.  

(2) With this license, you may also:  

(a) Offer for play nonhouse-banked card games; and/or  

(b) Conduct approved tournaments; and/or 

(c) Offer player-supported jackpots; and/or 

(d) Use alternative fee collection. 

(3) You may not operate more than 15 card tables. 

 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR MANUFACTURER, DISTRIBUTOR, AND GAMBLING 

SERVICE SUPPLIER LICENSE APPLICANTS  

REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSING MANUFACTURERS AND DISTRIBUTORS APPLICANTS
 

WAC 230-03-185 Applying for a manufacturer license. (1) You must 

apply for a manufacturer license if you:
 

(a) Make or assemble a completed piece or pieces of gambling 

equipment for use in authorized gambling activities; or
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 14 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(b) Convert, modify, combine, add to, or remove parts or compo-

nents of any gambling equipment for use in authorized gambling activi-

ties; or
 

(c) Manufacture group 12 amusement games approved or modified af-

ter May 1, 2016. Manufacturers of group 12 amusement games that were 

approved before the effective date of this rule must apply by May 1, 

2016, and be licensed by December 31, 2016. Manufacturers of group 12 

amusement games can sell or lease group 12 amusement games to a li-

censed distributor or an Class B or above amusement game licensee.
 

(2) You must demonstrate your ability to comply with all manufac-

turing, quality control, and operations restrictions imposed on au-

thorized gambling equipment that you want to manufacture or market for 

use in Washington state.
 

(3) The licensing process may include an on-site review of your 

manufacturing equipment and process for each separate type of author-

ized gambling equipment to ensure compliance capability.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070, 9.46.0201. WSR 16-19-015, § 230-

03-185, filed 9/8/16, effective 10/9/16; WSR 16-08-033 (Order 718), § 

230-03-185, filed 3/30/16, effective 4/30/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070. WSR 09-11-085 (Order 646), § 230-03-185, filed 5/18/09, ef-



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 15 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

fective 7/1/09; WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-185, filed 

3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-03-190 Applying for a distributor license. You must apply 

for a distributor license if you:
 

(1) Buy or otherwise obtain a finished piece of gambling equip-

ment for use in authorized gambling activities from another person and 

sell or provide that gambling equipment to a third person for resale, 

display, or use; or
 

(2) Are a manufacturer who sells or provides gambling equipment 

you do not make to any other person for resale, display, or use; or
 

(3) Service and repair authorized gambling equipment. However, 

distributors must not add, modify, or alter the gambling equipment; or
 

(4) Modify gambling equipment using materials provided by manu-

facturers to upgrade equipment to current technology.
 

(5) Buy or lease a group 12 amusement game from another licensee 

and sell or lease the group 12 amusement game to an Class B and above 

amusement game licensee.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070, 9.46.0201. WSR 16-19-015, § 230-

03-190, filed 9/8/16, effective 10/9/16; WSR 16-08-033 (Order 718), § 

230-03-190, filed 3/30/16, effective 4/30/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 16 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-190, filed 3/22/06, ef-

fective 1/1/08.] 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-03-192 Applying for a fund-raising equipment distributor li-

cense. 

(1) You must apply for a fund-raising equipment distributor license if 

you are a commercial or charitable or nonprofit organization and 

want to:  

(a) Rent or lease gambling equipment to: 

(i) Fund-raising event license holders; or 

(ii) A qualified organization, business or association for 

recreational gaming activities; or 

(b) Organize and conduct recreational gaming activities. 

(2) Fund-raising equipment distributors cannot make their own gambling 

equipment.  
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR GAMBLING SERVICE SUPPLIERS APPLICANTS
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSING LINKED BINGO PRIZE PROVIDERS APPLICANTS
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSING CALL CENTERS APPLICANTS
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR INDIVIDUAL LICENSES
 

Licensing CHARITABLE OR NONPROFIT GAMBLING MANAGERS
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 17 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-03-235 Applying for charitable or nonprofit gambling man-

ager license. You must apply for a charitable or nonprofit gambling 

manager license if you are an employee or member of a charitable or 

nonprofit organization who:
 

(1) Will have control to a material degree over a Class D and 

above bingo license or punchboard and pull-tab licensee whose gross 

gambling receipts are more than one hundred fifty thousand dollars in 

a license year; or
 

(2) Will have control to a material degree over a Class C and 

above punch boards and pull-tabs licensee whose gross gambling re-

ceipts are more than one hundred thousand dollars in a license year; 

or
 

(3) Will be the supervisor of gambling managers who manage: 

(i)  aA Class D and above bingo licensee or punchboard and 

pull-tab licensee with gross gambling receipts more than one 

hundred fifty thousand dollars in a license year; or  

(ii) A Class C and above punch boards and pull-tabs licensee 

with gross gambling receipts more than one hundred 

thousand dollars in a license year; or
 

(3)(4) Will be assigned the highest level of authority by the of-

ficers or governing board of directors to manage the day-to-day af-



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 18 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

fairs of the organization and is responsible for safeguarding assets 

purchased with gambling funds and/or managing the disbursement of gam-

bling funds when the organization:
 

(a) Is licensed to receive more than three hundred thousand dol-

lars in gross gambling receipts; or
 

(b) Has established a trust and/or endowment fund to which gam-

bling receipts in excess of one hundred thousand dollars have been 

contributed; or
 

(4)(5) Will be the supervisor of the operation of progressive 

jackpot pull-tab games.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-

03-235, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

 

WAC 230-03-265 Applying for a card room employee license. You 

must apply for a card room employee license: 

(1) Iif you will be involved in the operation of a: nonhouse-

banked card room, Class F endorsed nonhouse-banked card room, or 

house-banked card room; and 
 

(1)Nonhouse-bankedClass E card room(Class A card room employee 

license); or
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 19 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(2) Class F endorsed nonhouse-banked card room (Class B card room 

employee license); or
 

(3) House-banked card room (Class B card room employee license); 

and
 

(2)(4) You perform any of the following functions:
 

(a) Collecting fees; or
 

(b) Dealing; or
 

(c) Supervising any card game or other card room employee, such 

as acting as a pit boss, floor person, or section supervisor; or
 

(d) Selling or redeeming chips; or
 

(e) Performing cashier or cage duties such as counting and han-

dling chips or cash, completing credit slips, fill slips, or inventory 

slips, or accounting for other card room receipts in the cage; or
 

(f) Observing dealers and card games to detect cheating or con-

trol functions; or
 

(g) Controlling card room funds including keys to secure loca-

tions; or
 

(h) Taking part in the operation of a card game. 

(3) A Class B card room employee license is required to work at a 

house-banked card room and Class F endorsed nonhouse-banked card room.  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 20 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(4) A Class A card room employee license is required to work at a 

nonhouse-banked card room.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-

03-265, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-03-285 Class III gaming employee working as card room em-

ployee. A certified Class III gaming employee must submit an 

add/transfer application and pay a fee before beginning work for a 

public card room.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-

03-285, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

REPRESENTATIVE LICENSINGEPRESENTATIVES
 

WAC 230-03-330 Representing one or more licensed businesses. (1) 

If you are a licensed distributor representative, gambling service 

supplier representative, or a linked bingo prize provider representa-

tive or applying for one of these representative licenses, you must 

represent only one licensed distributor, gambling service supplier, or 

linked bingo prize provider at a time.
 

(2) If you are a licensed manufacturer representative, you may 

represent more than one licensed manufacturer.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 21 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(3) If the owner you represent owns more than one licensed busi-

ness, you may represent the owner in all those licensed businesses, 

including licensed manufacturers, without applying for another repre-

sentative license. 

(4) You must submit an application and pay a fee before beginning 

work at a new or additional employer.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 09-24-012 (Order 664), § 230-

03-330, filed 11/20/09, effective 12/21/09; WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), 

§ 230-03-330, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360)486-3440  (800)345-2529  FAX (360) 486-3625 

 
Red Lion on the River 

700 N. Division St. Spokane, WA 99202 
September 14 & 15, 2017 

 
Please note, agenda times are estimates only.  Items may be taken out of sequence at the 

discretion of the Chair. 
Public Meeting – Friday, September 15, 2017 

 
9:00 AM Call to Order and Welcome                                                                 Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

                                                                             
Tab 5 

 
Presentation -  Administrative Case Update                 Tony Hughes, Special Agent Supervisor 
                                                                                                            Tyson Wilson, Special Agent 
 

Tab 6 Presentation – Problem Gambling  
                                                          Maureen Greeley, Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling  
                                                        Ann Gray, DSHS,  Division of Behavioral Health and Recovery 

                                                                            Lisa Guzman, Kalispel Tribe Camas Path 
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS 

RULE FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION 
 

Tab 7 Petition for Rule Change - Ducks Unlimited                              Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
 WAC 230-11-087 Other pricing plans for members-only raffles 

 
RULE FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE FILING 

 
Tab 8 Staff Request For New Rule - Gambling Equipment                  Tina Griffin, Assistant Director

 WAC 230-17-192 Rule-making that involves new or novel electronic or mechanical 
gambling equipment 

 
 Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comments 

 
 Meeting Adjourn 

 
Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings. Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to 
rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator (360) 486-3447. 



Administrative
Case Update
September 2017
Special Agent Tyson Wilson, Licensing
Special Agent Supervisor Tony Hughes, Regulation



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 2

Licensing Unit



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 3

3 agents

41 combined years at WSGC

All Certified Fraud Examiners

Licensing Agents



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 4

“Protect the public by keeping 
the criminal element out of 
licensed gambling activities.”

Licensing Mission Statement



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 5

Report types:

Verbal warnings (5)
Charges issued (7)
Conditional reports (22)

61 apps withdrawn based on
criminal history investigations

2017 Licensing Administrative Cases
Individuals

Organizations

3410

24

*Q4 2016 – Q3 2017

ADMINISRATIVE CASES*



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 6

Common Cases: Individuals

Criminal history

Tribal revocation

Theft from employer or facility patrons

Active warrants

Failure to disclose criminal history



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 7

Revocation and Denial Cases

Revocations
Lewd act at security podium

Pending Child Molestation 1

Child Rape 3 charge

Theft of patron’s cell phone

Denials
Felony Bank Embezzlement

Stole $200/night by palming chips

Previous charges for bookmaking

Theft 1 conviction



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 8

Common Cases: Organizations
Failure to provide required information

Willful disregard for complying

Failure to notify WSGC (in writing) of changes within 30 days

Failure to submit compliant financial statements

Late submission of activity reports

Failure to pay gambling taxes

Operating without a license

Failure to pay exceeding license class fees



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 9

Punchboard/Pull‐tab application submitted with a sole 100% owner

Ownership changes not reported in 2012 and 2013 when previously 
licensed

Failed to pay 2nd half payment in 2013

Current applicant operated without a valid license in 2012‐2013

15‐day suspension, paid $1,067 for investigative costs, license issued

Denial Case: Organization



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 10

Ownership change required new license application

Service supplier submitted a stock change for 99.7% ownership change

WAC: changes over 50% require new application

New ownership operated under old license until new license approved

New license issued after settlement:
5‐day suspension vacated for penalty of $31,014
10‐day suspension and $100,000 fine deferred for 1 year (no violations)

Revocation Case: Organization



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 11

Regulation Unit



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 12

26 agents
400+ years combined service
12 Certified Fraud Examiners
3 Certified Public Accountants

5 graduate degrees

Regulation Unit



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 13

2016 Administrative Cases
TOTAL

569
Operational Violations

Record Keeping Violations

Operating w/o License

Fraud/Cheating

Internal Control Violations

Theft

Other



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 14

Administrative Case Dispositions
Not Needed

Unfounded

Information Only

Verbal Warning

Written Warning

NOVAS (Fine)

Statement of Charges

Summary Suspension



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 15

Administrative Cases

24 25

TOTAL DISPOSITIONS 

152

NOVAS

Statement of Charges

Summary Suspension

NOVAS:
Failure to delete prize from pull‐tab 
flare
Allowing a minor to gamble
Failure to accurately report tips
Late activity reports

Statement of Charges: Theft, cheating, 
internal control violations

Summary Suspension: Theft, cheating, 
assault



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 16

Cardroom Employee Theft
Cardroom reported theft by a server (licensed CRE)

Server conducted excessive voids in POS, pocketed 
cash

Stole $3,000+ over 3 months

Server confessed to agent

License revoked

Criminal charges filed, server pled guilty



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 17

Non‐profit Employee Theft
Operating under Previous Agreed Order for failure to protect assets

2012: Missing bingo funds, lack of proper controls, new manager hired

2016 inspection revealed errors/discrepancies: bingo funds missing

Manager admitted to taking $770 over 4 months ($30/session)

Nonprofit’s license revoked

Bingo manager’s gambling license surrendered 

Criminal charges filed against bingo manager; pled guilty



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 18



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 19

Assault by Off‐Duty Employee

Off‐duty dealer assaulted girlfriend at casino

Casino notified police and agent

Dealer arrested, charged with DV assault

Summary Suspension issued

Dealer’s license surrendered with 
settlement order



Questions?
Special Agent Tyson Wilson, Licensing
Special Agent Supervisor Tony Hughes, Regulation



Problem Gambling Program Update
Washington State Gambling Commission

September 13th‐14th , 2017

Ann Gray

Problem Gambling Program Manager

Division of Behavioral Health and Recovery



Washington State Program 

• DBHR certifies agencies in Washington State to provide Treatment for 
Problem Gambling.

• Per RCW 67.70.340 DBHR receives .013% of a Business and Operations tax 
on net receipts from card rooms, pull tabs, and other games of chance, 
lottery, and horseracing.

• Our 2017‐2019 program funding is approximately $1,449,000 of which  
86% is designated towards out‐patient treatment.

• We currently contract with 22 certified  treatment providers/agencies 
within Washington State to provide problem gambling treatment.

• The treatment is provided to persons or family members who are assessed 
as needing treatment, and cannot afford to pay. Clients do not need to be 
Medicaid eligible.



Washington State Program

• We also contract with Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling to provide 
provider training, prevention, and outreach initiatives. This includes, 
Responsible Gaming Training; Peer to Peer Prevention Initiative; Public 
Service Announcements and Provider Training. This is  part of the 14% of 
funding that is not designated specifically to treatment.



Program Manager Responsibilities 

Responsibilities directly contribute to the achievement of safe, healthy 
individuals, families, and communities through its integrated role in the 
implementation of the public behavioral health system. The Program 
Manager is responsible for all services related to the State Problem Gambling 
Program. These include:

• Legislative bill analysis.

• Researching best practice initiatives related to problem gambling.

• Fiscal management.

• Treatment capacity.

• Development and management of contracts.

• Prevention and outreach.

• Oversight  and certification of Problem Gambling Treatment programs.



My Focus /First Seven Months

• Training on all state monitoring and fiscal programs.

• Conducted 21 site visits to agencies with treatment contracts throughout 
Washington State. This served as a biennium site audit.

• Prepared and executed 21  contract amendments and one new contract to 
treatment facilities for the 2017‐2019 biennium.

• In Collaboration with ECPG, prepared and executed a contract amendment 
to support  outreach, prevention and training initiatives.

• Conducted site visits to agencies for recruitment of PG counselors and to 
support outreach initiatives in Yakima, Seattle, and Renton.

• Collaborated and presented  with ECPG at  their May Basic Training 
Problem Gambling Workshop in Bothell, Washington where 18 potential 
problem gambling counselors were in attendance.



First Seven Months/cont.

• Facilitated the addition of Free by The Sea to the state contract program 
and conducted contract orientation.

• Supported two agencies in Vancouver and Yakima with the process for 
adding problem gambling certification  to their current licensure. They 
hope to contract with the state for treatment services.

• Participated in discussions about residential treatment in Washington 
state with ECPG, DBHR colleagues and interested providers in Washington.



Future Initiatives

• Problem Gambling overview and state resource presentations are  
scheduled this fall in four  Puget Sound area school districts. Pending 
presentations and follow up in at least 10 other Washington school 
districts. Presentation audience will vary depending on district need. 
Presentations scheduled to date are with school counselors and other 
school district mental health staff in Seattle, Auburn, Puyallup, and 
Everett. 

• Outreach to senior centers and senior/retirement communities.

• Continued outreach statewide to recruit problem gambling counselors, 
specifically in regions not currently served. 

• Outreach with current contracted agencies to support community 
awareness activities and presentations. 

• Connections with recovering community and resources available. 



1) There are currently 27 providers that are state certified to provide problem gambling 
treatment.

2) Approximately 1 in 2 individuals assessed during State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2017 for problem 
gambling were admitted into treatment.

3) Of admissions in SFY 2017, 76% of applicable cases had indicators of treatment initiation within 
14 days of admission;  and more than 1 in 2 met criteria for 30‐day treatment engagement. 

4) The treatment retention rate  (i.e., applicable cases with active participation in treatment for at 
least 90 days; or with a length of stay equaling 90 days or less, with a treatment discharge type 
of treatment completion) among problem gambling treatment admissions in SFY 2017 was 
64%.

5) Over time, the median length of stay (LOS) among those discharged from treatment has 
decreased; while the median LOS among those still in treatment has increased. 

6) Of those on the active and open inactive Problem Gambling treatment caseload at the end of 
SFY 2017, more than 9 in 10 clients reside in Western Washington.

7) Although the SFY 2017 treatment completion rate is 36%, more than 1 in 4 clients were 
discharged from treatment as a result of “no contact/abort” during that same period.

8) Since the inception of Problem Gambling treatment program, approximately 1 of every 7 clients 
discharged from problem gambling treatment were readmitted to treatment.

Highlights and Alerts



Admissions in State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2017

Analysis:
There were 151 admissions to 
problem gambling treatment in 
SFY 2017 . Of these admissions: 
2,3,4

1 Includes individuals assessed and/or admitted into Problem Gambling treatment between July 1, 2016 and June 30, 2017.
2 Counts were collapsed where applicable to indicators where N values were less than 10, to minimize data suppression.
3 “Single (Marital Status)” includes Never Married and Widowed.
4 Each race category excludes the Hispanic population, which is reported as a distinct ethnic group within the total population. “Other (Race)” includes Multiracial, Native American,  
Other,  and Unknown.

Approximately 1 in 2 clients assessed during SFY 2017 for problem gambling were admitted into treatment 1 (Note: 
Some clients with admissions during the reporting period had been assessed prior to that time.).

20

33

18

25
29

32
35

19

29

23 24 22

16

24

15
10

20 18
21

12

6 5
0

4

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17

Nu
m

be
r b

y M
on

th

Assessments and  Admissions to Treatment by Month

Assessments Admissions

<=30 21 13.91

31‐40 39 25.83

41‐50 35 23.18

51‐64 43 28.48

65+ 13 8.61

Female 74 49.01

Male 77 50.99

Divorced or Separated 30 19.87

Married or
Committed Relationship

82 54.3

Single 39 25.83

African American 11 7.28

Asian or Pacific Islander 17 11.26

Other 65 43.05

White 58 38.41

Hispanic 4 2.65

Not Hispanic 88 58.28

Unknown 59 39.07

Marital Frequency Percent

Race Frequency Percent

Age Group Frequency Percent

Gender Frequency Percent

Hispanic Frequency Percent



76.2%

53.6%

63.6%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

Treatment Initiation

Treatment Engagement

Treatment Retention

Treatment Indicators among Admissions to
Problem Gambling Treatment in SFY 2017

Treatment Initiation, Engagement and Retention among SFY 2017 Admissions
Analysis:
Between July 2016 and June 
2017 there were 151 
admissions, down 47% from SFY 
2016 (287). Of these admissions, 
115 applicable cases^^ (76%) 
initiated treatment activity 
within 14 days of admission; 
and 81 cases (54%) had at least 
2 additional treatment sessions 
within 30 days after initiation. 
The 90‐day treatment retention 
rate among these admissions^^
was 64%.

Examining patterns of treatment 
attendance and the frequency of 
treatment encounters will be 
necessary to determine the 
relationship between levels of 
engagement and retention, and 
the potential antecedents to 
aborted cases.



Analysis:
There were 118 discharges* from 
problem gambling treatment in 
SFY 2017. Among those 
discharged: 1,2,3

Of discharges from treatment* in SFY 2017, 27% had “No Contact/Abort” as the discharge type.  The treatment 
completion rate was 36% during SFY 2017. 

The median LOS among SFY 2017 treatment completers was 424 days, which has moderated over time.

Approximately 1 in 7 clients discharged from treatment were subsequently readmitted to treatment. The median 
lag period between discharge and readmission to treatment is approximately 165 days.**

2%

36%

1%

6%27%

5%

1% 4%

19%

Discharges from Problem Gambling Treatment in SFY 2017
Client Died

Completed Treatment

Incarcerated

Moved

No Contact/Abort

Not Amenable to Treatment/Lacks Engagement

Transferred to Different Facility

Withdrew Against Program Advice

Withdrew with Program Advice

<=30 12 10.17
31‐40 25 21.19

41‐50 18 15.25

51‐64 48 40.68

65+ 15 12.71

Female 70 59.32

Male 48 40.68

Divorced or Separated 35 29.91

Married or 
Committed Relationship

55 47.01

Single 27 23.08

Asian or Pacific Islander 20 16.95

Other 25 21.19

White 73 61.86

Hispanic 7 5.93

Not Hispanic 100 84.75

Unknown 11 9.32

Race Frequency Percent

Hispanic Frequency Percent

Marital Frequency Percent

Frequency Missing = 1

Age Group Frequency Percent

Gender Frequency Percent



^   Includes individuals identified as open cases, as of June 30, 2017. Open cases include those still in treatment, who actively participated in treatment activity within the 60‐day period  
leading to the reporting date; and open inactive cases, where no treatment activity was provided for more than 60 days leading to the reporting date.

^^ Other Counties (of client residence) include Kitsap, Okanogan, Skagit, Spokane, Thurston, and Whatcom counties.

“Other (Race)” include American Indian/Alaska Native,  and Other/Unknown race.

Of the 118 persons* in treatment with the Problem Gambling program at the end of SFY 2017: 

1 in 2 clients are female, 83% of 
whom are 40 or older

More than 1 in 2 clients are married; 
nearly 1 in 4 are single**; and more 
than 1 in 5 are divorced or separated

1 in 2 clients are Caucasian; 30% of clients 
represent people of color – 3/5 of whom 
include individuals who are Asian or Pacific 
Islander in ethnic origin

*   Includes (as of June 30, 2017) individuals who have received treatment in the 60 days leading to the reporting date. 
** “Single” includes individuals who have never been married, or who are widowed.

8.5%

17.8%

50.9%

22.9%
African American

Asian/Pacific Islander

White

Other

The median LOS among those still 
in treatment is 483 days, which 
has increased over time.

Three in four clients still in 
treatment are over the age of 40.

Asians and Pacific Islanders make 
up the largest proportion of non‐
White clients on the Problem 
Gambling open caseload.

The percentages of open cases by 
marital status have been 
relatively stable over time. About 
one‐half of clients on the 
Problem Gambling open caseload 
are married or in a committed 
relationship.

King 69 58.47

Other Counties 23 19.49

Pierce 15 12.71

Snohomish 11 9.32

Residence County Frequency Percent

Analysis: There were 442 open 
cases^ from problem gambling 
treatment at the end of SFY 
2017. Of these cases, 118 were 
still in treatment; and 324 
inactive cases remain open.

The numbers of clients still in 
Problem Gambling treatment 
varies by county^^:



Summary and Data Response

• Admissions are down. Consider evaluation of  and training around use of 
assessment tools and treatment planning.

• Retention and discharge data is largely dependent on clinicians follow‐up 
in TARGET data system. Support and encourage clinician follow‐up with 
accurate and timely documentation.

• Data needed regarding after care and long term sustained recovery.

Other Responses and questions:

Thank you for your continued support of Problem Gambling efforts in 
Washington State.



 
 
 
Tab 7: September 2017 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Bold/Underline = Changes made after the August 2017 Commission Meeting  
 
Scott Eisenhauer, State Chairman, Ducks Unlimited Washington.  As of June 9, 2017, there were 52 
Ducks Unlimited chapters in Washington that held raffle licenses. 
 
Attachments: 

• RCW 9.46.0277 “Raffle.” 
• WAC 230-11-086 Discounted pricing plans for tickets to members-only raffles.   
• Petition for Adoption, Amendment or Repeal of a State Administrative Rule received on May 23, 

2017. 
• Letter from John Tierney, Sr. Regional Director Northwest Washington, dated August 29, 

2017 with attachments. 
 

Petitioner’s Request  
 
Mr. Eisenhauer submitted a petition for rule change “to increase the maximum value of a raffle ticket sold 
as part of a members-only raffle from $25 to $100.  This rule change is necessary because it increase(s) 
predictability for licensees that a members-only (raffle), which involves selling tickets as part of a multi-
component package, will result in a net profit for the licensee.  By raising the maximum price of a raffle 
ticket from $25 to $100 for raffle packages containing multiple components, the proceeds of the raffle are 
far more likely to exceed the fair market value of the awarded prize.”  
 
At the July 2017 Commission meeting, representatives from Ducks Unlimited explained that their rule 
change request would allow them to assign a value of up to $100 for the raffle portion of their Bronze 
Sponsorship package. With this change the Bronze Sponsorship package would be $350, of which $250 
goes to conservation efforts.  The ability to assign a higher value to the raffle tickets included in this 
package would allow the licensee to offset the cost of the raffle prize offered.   
 
A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was unnecessary because the rule does not impose 
any costs on the industry. 
 

Policy Considerations 
Our rules only authorize members-only raffles to offer multi-component packages to include a raffle 
ticket.   
 

 
 

Petition for Rule Change  
WAC 230-11-087 Other pricing plans for members-only raffles. 

 
September 2017 – Further Discussion  

August 2017 – Further Discussion  
July 2017 – Discussion and Possible Filing 

 
 



In 2009, the Legislature increased the cost of raffle tickets from $25 to $100.  Today, when selling raffle 
tickets, bona fide and charitable organizations can charge up to $100 for a raffle ticket.  When using a 
pricing scheme, bundling tickets or discounting tickets, such organizations must follow WAC rules that 
authorize such alternative methods of selling tickets.  The petitioner is requesting to modify the WAC to 
address the petitioners pricing scheme. 
 
Licensees could include multiple tickets at $25 each as part of a multi-component package under the 
current rule.  For example, Ducks Unlimited could include four raffle tickets in their multi-component 
package at $25 each.   
 
 
  



RCW 9.46.0277  "Raffle." 
 

"Raffle," as used in this chapter, means a game in which tickets bearing an individual number 
are sold for not more than one hundred dollars each and in which a prize or prizes are awarded 
on the basis of a drawing from the tickets by the person or persons conducting the game, when 
the game is conducted by a bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization, no person other than a 
bona fide member of the organization takes any part in the management or operation of the 
game, and no part of the proceeds thereof inure to the benefit of any person other than the 
organization conducting the game. 

 
[ 2009 c 133 § 1; 1995 2nd sp.s. c 4 § 1; 1987 c 4 § 20. Formerly RCW 9.46.020(19).] 
 

  

http://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2009-10/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/1053.SL.pdf?cite=2009%20c%20133%20%C2%A7%201;
http://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/1995-96/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/Senate/5269.SL.pdf?cite=1995%202nd%20sp.s.%20c%204%20%C2%A7%201;
http://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1987c4.pdf?cite=1987%20c%204%20%C2%A7%2020.
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.020


WAC 230-11-086 Discounted pricing plans for tickets to members-only raffles. 
In discounted pricing plans, licensees may sell tickets for a discounted price based on the number 
of tickets a player purchases if: 

(1) The amount of the discount is set before any raffle tickets are sold; and 
(2) Participants are allowed to purchase a single ticket; and 
(3) There is only one discount plan for each raffle; and 
(4) The cost of a single ticket, without a discount, does not exceed ten dollars; and 
(5) The total cost of a discount package does not exceed twenty-five dollars; and 
(6) The cost of a single ticket is printed on each ticket (for example, one dollar each); and 
(7) The discounted tickets are identified by a unique ticket audit numbering system; and 
(8) The licensee establishes an audit system that includes internal controls and procedures to 
determine gross gambling receipts from the sale of tickets using a discounted pricing plan. 

 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-20-040 (Order 602), § 230-11-086, filed 9/26/06, effective 
1/1/08.] 
 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070
























 
 
 
Tab 8: September 2017 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Staff 

Describe the Petitioner’s Request and Staff’s Position 
Staff is requesting a new rule to require a manufacturer or its designee to submit electronic or mechanical 
gambling equipment for review during rule-making when the: 

• Gambling equipment is new or novel in Washington State; and 
• Commission has taken action to adopt, change, or repeal a rule in order to authorize use of the 

gambling equipment. 
 
 

Policy Considerations 
When a petition for rule-making involves new gambling equipment or a new concept involving gambling 
equipment, staff feels it is necessary to include a review of the gambling equipment as part of the rule-
making process.  A review of the gambling equipment during the rule-making process would ensure: 

• Staff has a clear understanding of how the equipment works;  
• Regulatory guidelines can be addressed during the rule-making process; and 
• More effective rule-making can occur as a result of understanding how the gambling equipment 

operates. 
 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends filing for further discussion. 

 

 

 
 

Staff request for New Rule   
WAC 230-17-192 Rule-making that involves new or novel electronic or 

mechanical gambling equipment. 

 

September 2017 – Discussion and Possible Filing 
 



NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-17-192 Rule-making that involves new or novel electronic or 
mechanical gambling equipment. 

(1) A manufacturer or its designee is required to submit electronic or mechanical gambling 
equipment for evaluation during rule-making when: 
(a) The equipment is new or novel in Washington State; and  
(b) The Commission has taken action to adopt, change, or repeal a rule in order to 

authorize use of the gambling equipment. 
(2) When we are ready to begin our equipment evaluation, we will notify the manufacturer or 

its designee in writing.   The manufacturer or its  designee will have thirty (30) days from 
the date of our written request to submit the requested electronic or mechanical gambling 
equipment to our headquarters, directly or through a designee, or we may 
administratively close our review and deny the requested rule change. 

(3) Manufacturers or their designee must submit: 
(a) The gambling equipment, including all relevant software, that is identical or 

substantially similar to what will be marketed, distributed, and deployed in 
Washington;  

(b)  A copy of detailed technical materials and diagrams associated with the equipment 
and software, and all of the operational procedures and manuals, including relevant 
hardware and software manuals; and 

(c)  Other technical specifications as requested by the Commission. 
(4) The manufacturer or its designee must install, configure, and support the 

equipment/software to allow us to fully evaluate its operation.  Evaluation may include, 
but is not limited to, interoperability, communication, security, and player protection 
issues. 

(5) We will notify the manufacturer or their designee in writing if we require additional 
equipment or information for our evaluation. The manufacturer or its designee must 
provide us with the requested equipment or information within thirty (30) days from the 
date of our written request or we may administratively close our review and deny the 
requested rule change. 

 


	Sept 14 Agenda
	Tab 1a August Minutes
	Tab 1b HB CR Report
	Tab 2 Criminal Case Update
	Tab 3 Fee Simplification
	Tab 4  Rules Simplifacation Change
	Sept 15 Agenda
	Tab 5 Administrative Case Update
	Tab 6 PG Update
	Tab 7 Ducks Unlimited
	Tab 8 Gambling Equipment



